
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 18, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Town Center at Verona Walk 
8090 Sorrento Lane 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

May 18, 2023 
10:00 a.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. April 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting.............................................................................................Page 2 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Future Dredging 

2. Discussion Regarding Process to Make Homeowners Responsible for Lake Bank Repairs 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget……….Page 6 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 14 

K. Board Members Comments 

1. Status of the Red Float in the Main Pond - Hogan 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 20, 2023 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The April 20, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 
Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 11, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Present 
Supervisor Pat Clifford Absent 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor Michael Kurzawski Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Greg Urbancic (via phone) Coleman Yovanovich Koester 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present were the following:  Mike Sweeney – Advanced Aquatic Services; and the following 
District residents:  Dan Shallow, Ken Schaper, Herb Czeschin, Don Hazard, Ralph Morello, Chris 
Briggs, Jeanne Condle and Joe Candela. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Czubkowski requested the addition of the following item: Email on Xfinity Use of Easements.  
There was a consensus of the Board to discuss this under Board Member Comments. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  February 16, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The February 16, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
  
Ms. Czubkowski stated that Mr. Kurzawski was present and that on Page 3, under Comments from 
the Public, it should read that the presentation would be in April, not at the next meeting. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Kurzawski, seconded by Mr. Monti and passed unanimously approving 
the minutes of the February 16, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as amended. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS  
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Presentation by Advanced Aquatic Services – Mike Sweeney 
 
Mr. Sweeney gave a background on the company and noted that he had supervised the installation of 
the littoral planting project.   He indicated that the area of the experimental project was weed wacked 
and sprayed once, but seems to be doing okay.  He added that they can spray weeds with a chemical 
that differentiates between flowers and weeds.  Ms. Czubkowski noted that this was not the District’s 
first attempt at an experimental planting, as those were not successful.  She added that this one, so 
far, looked good, but would not consider it successful yet. 
 
Mr. Sweeney stated that the blue flag iris was doing well and that they do not do erosion work.  He 
explained that 450 plants were put in a 150-yard area in October at a cost of $700.  Mr. Monti opined 
that the soil was terrible and it would take two years until fully completed.  There was discussion with 
the audience and Mr. Monti stated that any future work would be through a bid situation. 
 
 2.  Consider Proposal for Drainage Repairs 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that this was in the amount of $12,388.77 to Napier Sprinkler to make repairs 
of drainage areas that had been put in incorrectly in the past.  She added that after this year the 
responsibility would be on the homeowners.  Discussion ensued about who should pay for the repairs.  
Mr. Briggs noted that the homeowners would need to pay after a certain date and Ms. Czubkowski 
stated that now we make sure new installations are put in correctly.  Mr. Hogan expressed that he 
objects, as he had to fix his own drainage and had it done right and is now paying for other homes 
who did not do it right.  Mr. Hirniak stated that there were a myriad of issues with these installations 
and added that, in some instances, it is a second or third owner since the drainage was put in.  He 
continued that the complete repair proposal would benefit the entire community.  Ms. Czubkowski 
added that the Board did not have the ability to enforce the homeowner to make the repairs.  Mr. 
Morello agreed with Mr. Hogan that the repairs should be the responsibility of the homeowners. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Kurzawski approving the Napier Sprinkler 
proper for drainage repairs in the amount of $12,388.77.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 
3 to 1 with Mr. Hogan dissenting 
 
 3.  Consider Proposal for Lake Bank Erosion 
 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that this was in the amount of $10,196.72 to Napier Sprinkler. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving the 
Napier Sprinkler proposal in the amount of $10,196.72 for lake bank erosion repairs. 
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Motion Made at Last January Meeting on Future Drainage 
Repairs 
 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that this had to do with the previous discussion and asked the attorney to 
review the minutes and give feedback at the next meeting.   
 
 5.  Budget Discussion 
 
Ms. Meneely indicated that the budget would be presented at the next meeting and if there were any 
changes or additions, the Board should let her know now.  Mr. Monti noted that he would like to keep 
$6,000 in the budget for future littoral plantings. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
There was no District Attorney Update at this time. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer Update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak went over the rainfall levels, noting that the normal range for this time of year was 6.3 
inches and the area is currently only at 1.3 inches.  He added that the lake levels were the same as in 
previous years. 
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 
Ms. Meneely presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board that the budget would be presented at the May 18th meeting with 
the final being presented at the July 18th meeting.  She stated that she would be unavailable for the 
June 15th meeting and asked if the Board would like to change the date.  There was a consensus of 
the Board was to cancel the June meeting. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 1.  Discussion on Improving Communication with the Homeowners – Hogan 
 
Mr. Hogan stated that he was going to keep pressing for improved communication and thanked Ms. 
Czubkowski for the information in the HOA weekly update. 
 
  a. First CDD Information Sent to the HOA for Weekly Update – Czubkowski 
 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that the first information was sent out and had been received well.  She 
indicated that next month’s communication had already been printed regarding tax bills and would 
be a stand-alone email when sent.  Mr. Briggs and Ms. Condle commended Ms. Czubkowski, 
indicating it was excellent information.   
 
 2.  List of Drainage Approved by ACC – Czubkowski 
 
Ms. Czubkowski went over the information and stated that she would sent to the Board the entire 
document since parts were missing in the agenda packet. 
 
Mr. Kurzawski left the meeting at 11:08 a.m. 
 
 3.  Email on Xfinity Use of Easements 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that the HOA had sent an email from Xfinity requesting use of the CDD’s 
easement for utility lines.  She pointed out that the District could not do that.  Mr. Urbancic went over 
the issues, stating that the CDD does not want a conflict. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:09 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Monti and that motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA 
WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Verona Walk Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for July 20, 2023 at 10:00 a.m.  
in the Town Center at Verona Walk, 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114, for the purpose 
of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 18th day of May, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 6



 Verona Walk
  Community Development District

  Proposed Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2023/2024

  October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



1 New Bond Prepayer For 2023/2024 Budget (Phase 2 - Oakmont)

Page 13



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
April 2023

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17


	Verona Walk Community Development District - May 18, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	April 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget




